
 

 
 

  

156 S. Broadway, Ste. 270, Turlock, CA 95380                         (209) 668-5349 (phone)   (209) 538-5788 (fax) 

Special Board Meeting Agenda 
December 13, 2023, at 12:00 p.m. 

156 S. Broadway, Turlock CA 2nd Floor - Yosemite Conference Room 
 

Chair, Amy Bublak  General Manager, Christopher Fisher 
Vice Chair, Javier Lopez Legal Counsel, Jennifer Buckman 
Director, Pam Franco Finance Director, Isaac Moreno 
Director, Bret Silveira  Board Secretary, Angelica Gonsalves 
Director (alternate), Rosalinda Vierra 
Director (alternate), Kevin Bixel 

 

THIS MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC IN PERSON.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 
2. RECOGNITION, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS & PRESENTATIONS:  
 
3. A. SPECIAL BRIEFINGS:  None 
    
 B. STAFF UPDATES:  
 

1. General Manager Update (Fisher)  
2. Finance Director Report (Moreno)  

 
 
 

 

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA) meetings are conducted in English and 
translation to other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, contact the Board Secretary at the 
phone number set forth above.  The Board is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and services.  
Please allow sufficient time for the Board to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the Board on any item 
appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Scheduled Matters, before or during the Board’s consideration of the item. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority Board meeting, a complete Agenda Packet (excluding any closed session 
materials) is available for review on the SRWA’s website at www.stanrwa.com and in the Board Secretary’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 
270, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the 
Agenda Packet are also available for public inspection in the Board Secretary’s Office at the address set forth above.  Such documents may 
be available on the SRWA’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. 



 Special Board Meeting Agenda 
December 13, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

  

C. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  This time is set aside for members of the public to address the Board 
concerning any item that has been described in the notice for the meeting, including Consent 
Calendar items, before or during consideration of that item.  You will be allowed five (5) 
minutes for your comments.  If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may 
be asked to defer your remarks until the Board addresses the matter. 

 
4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS: None 
   
5. CONSENT CALENDAR:  Information concerning the Consent items listed below has been 

forwarded to each Board member prior to this meeting for study.  Unless the Chair, a Board 
member, or member of the audience has questions concerning the Consent Calendar, the items 
are approved at one time by the Board.  The action taken by the Board in approving the Consent 
items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 
A. Motion:  Approving the minutes of regular meeting of August 17, 2023 

 
B. Motion: Adopting the 2024 Stanislaus Regional Water Authority Board Meeting Schedule 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
7. SCHEDULED MATTERS:  
 

A. Motion: Approving an Agreement with First Shield Security and Patrol, Inc., of Tracy, 
California, for unarmed, private security services at Stanislaus Regional Water Authority 
Water Treatment Plant for a three (3) year term in an amount not to exceed between 
$121,464 and $128,862 annually and not to exceed $376,000 over the term of the 
Agreement beginning November 16, 2023 and ending October 31, 2026 (Fisher) 

 
B. Motion: Appointing Nichole Fiez as the SRWA Board Secretary effective December 14, 2023 

(Fisher) 
 
8. BOARD ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
 
9. BOARD COMMENTS:  Board members may provide a brief report on notable topics of interest.  The 

Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 
 
10. NEXT MEETING DATE:  January 18, 2024 
 
11. CLOSED SESSION:  None 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



SURFACE WATER SUPPLY PROJECT

Agenda Item 3.B.1
General Manager’s Update

November 13, 2023

NFiez
Typewritten text
3B1



• Design-Build Project Activities

– Design-Build Contract Status

– Environmental Clearance/Permitting

– Acceptance Testing

– Operations Agreement

– Funding/Financing Update

– Public Outreach

– Project Photos

Project Update



Design-Build Contract Status

Original Contract $ 195,400,357

Net of Change Orders (42) $    -2,149,034         

Contract Sum to Date $ 193,294,963

Completed & Stored to 
Date

$ 185,154,367 (94%)

Balance to Finish $   10,245,990 (5%)

As of October 31, 2023



• Elderberry at RWPS for Security Fence

• Interim Permit to Operate SRWA issued 
11/3/2023

• Interim Permit to Operate Turlock Terminal 
Tank issued 11/9/2023 

• Ceres water deliveries began 11/14/2023

• Turlock water deliveries expected 
12/4/2023

Environmental 
Clearance/Permitting

SE1



• Deliverables - Monthly Update

Operations Agreement

Section Action

4.2 Staffing & Pre-Acceptance Duties

4.3(A) Standard Operating Procedures – SOP’s have been 
delivered currently being validated as part of the AT. 
Maintenance procedures awaiting Asset list and 
CMMS population

4.3(B) Site Security contract Staff Report

4.5 Determining Appropriate Recycled water costs for TID 

4.7 (C) Annual Financial Audit preparation

7.3 In application process for Insurance from ACWA JPIA 
as well as WSIG

SE2



Area Action 

Operational Creating Operations and Maintenance Agreement with 
TID

Operational Annual Planned operations following Acceptance 
Testing. Schedule and Flows for TID

Regulatory Creation of Regulatory Calendar for SRWA 

Additional Items



• Acceptance testing began 11/26/2023

• Lack of Senior Water Operators

– Shift Operators in Charge of Plant

– Plant Operations Training ongoing

– Aggressive Media campaign for hiring  

• Currently Staffing for Senior Water Operators

– 2 City of Turlock Staff

– 3 OTS operators

– One offer extended and accepted but employee 
retracted 

Section 4.2 – Staffing & 
Acceptance Testing

SE3



Funding/Financing Update

SRF Loan
Disbursement Request #1-25 submitted 

#’s 1-24 received = $185M

#25 is approved and expected soon

Awarded Grants

IRWM = $5.8M

Received to Date = $3.2M

Prop 50 = $5M

First disbursement = $3.98M



• Continue to Maintain Website and Social 
Media Presence
– Two new videos posted about the project and 

circulated

– SRWA Web site requires updating

• Customer Outreach by Cities
– Notification of New Source

– Notification of Chlorination

• Ribbon Cutting Ceremony
– Completed 11/14

Public Outreach





www.stanrwa.com



 
 
 
To:  SRWA Board 
 
From:  Isaac Moreno, Finance Director 
 
Subject: Financial Summary as of December 8, 2023 
 
Attached Financial Documents include: 
 
 
 
Activity for YTD Fiscal June 30, 2023  
 

1 – SRWA financial status as of 12-8-2023 for the 2022-23 fiscal year (Exhibit A): 
 Revenue received from the participating agencies $72,303,904.24 

Integrated Water Management Plan Grant  $5,220,824.39 
 SRF proceeds $67,321,904.00 
 Expenses paid total $109,709,135.49 

 
 
Activity for YTD Fiscal June 30, 2024  
 

1 – SRWA financial status as of 12-8-2023 for the 2023-24 fiscal year (Exhibit B): 
 Revenue received from the participating agencies $19,385,719.00 
 Integrated Water Management Plan Grant  $0.00 
 SRF proceeds $14,336,217.00 
 Expenses paid total $39,382,437.69 

 
2 – SRWA financial status – project-to-date as of 12-8-2023 (Exhibit C): 
 Revenue life to date totals $415,495,577.98 which is composed of: 

Contributions from participating agencies $233,690,923.61 
Draws on SRF proceeds $145,188,547.00 
Prop 68 Grant proceeds $27,750,000.00 
Integrated Water Management Plan Grant $5,220,824.39 
Interest income ($336,993.10) 

 
 Expenses project-to-date total $219,888,390.90 (Removed City reimbursement) 
 Cumulative unexpended Revenues $ 21,022,427.19 
 
Projected Cash Flow for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 are as follows: 

 

 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total

City of Ceres 4,046,997    2,405,567         4,600,365         627,434      11,680,364      

City of Turlock 8,371,448    4,237,538         8,995,766         1,190,346  22,795,098      

Turlock Irrigation District 275,025       49,114               10,702               3,336           338,177            

Total Billing 12,693,470 6,692,220         13,606,833      1,821,116  34,813,639      

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

 
3B2 

December 13, 2023 
 

Aga 



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
For FY 2023-24    (Updated 12/08/2023)

Account Name
Original 
Budget Amendments

Amended 
Budget 
2023-24

Unaudited 
Actual 
2023-24 Ceres Turlock TID

Other 
Proceeds

Totals for 
2022-23

REVENUES
Interest Income 100,000 100,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

34910 Integrated Water Mgmt Grant 0
34911 Water Smart Grant 0

34900_001 Agency Contrinbution - City of Turlock 22,910,291 22,910,291 12,608,986.00 12,608,986.00 12,608,986.00
34900_002 Agency Contribution - City of Ceres 11,846,142 11,846,142 6,452,564.00 6,452,564.00 6,452,564.00
34900_004 Agency Contrinbution - Turlock Irrigation District 468,492 468,492 324,169.00 324,169.00 324,169.00

34910 Integrated Water Mgmt Plan Grant 0.00
34912 Prop 68 Grant for Surface Water Project 0 0.00 0.00
34913 Prop 50 Grant for Surface Water Project 0 0.00
35440 SRF Funding Proceeds 0 14,336,217.00 14,336,217.00 14,336,217.00

   Total Revenues 35,324,925 0 35,324,925 33,721,936.00 6,452,564.00 12,608,986.00 324,169.00 14,336,217.00 33,721,936.00

EXPENSES
Operations Expense (950-53-550)

49007 Salary Charges From Other Departments 2,122,300 2,122,300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43055-000 Consultant General 200,000 200,000 47,125.00 15,706.76 31,418.24 0.00 47,125.00
43055-002 Consultant Audit 10,000 10,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43060-012 Contract Services Program Management 687,868 687,868 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43100-008 Insurance Liability 67,000 67,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43105-003 Interdepartmental Admin Support 37,500 37,500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

43195 Special Legal Counsel 10,350 10,350 6,269.06 2,089.48 4,179.58 0.00 6,269.06
43314 Contract Help - Service 613,619 613,619 13,057.50 4,352.06 8,705.44 0.00 13,057.50
43316 NPDES Permit Studies 355,000 355,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43319 Regulatory Fees 25,000 25,000 4,570.00 1,523.18 3,046.82 0.00 4,570.00
43320 Special Services/Projects 205,000 205,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43351 Facility Site Improvements 180,000 180,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43353 RWQCF-OPS Building Repairs 15,000 15,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43359 Professional Engineering Services 325,000 325,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

44001-000 Supplies General 264,000 264,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
44005 Chemicals 1,655,000 1,655,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

44010-001 Computer Software Maintenance 241,200 241,200 6,200.00 2,066.46 4,133.54 0.00 6,200.00
44030-001 Minor Equipment Safety 45,000 45,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
44030-002 Minor Equipment Tools 190,000 190,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
44030-028 Minor Equipment Lab 75,000 75,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

44090 Office Equipment & Furniture 20,000 20,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
44110 WQC Pump Maintenance 20,000 20,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

45002-000 Turlock Irrigation District General 700,000 700,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
45003-000  PG & E General

45007 Internet Access 2,319.44 773.07 1,546.37 0.00 2,319.44
45019 Raw Water 224,029 224,029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
46010 Equipment Rental 120,000 120,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
46025 Outside Contractor Labor 15,000 15,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
46031 Gas & Oil 20,500 20,500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
47020 Certification 15,000 15,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
47065 Professional Development 600 600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
47080 Shoe Allowance 3,750 3,750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

47095-000 Training General/Travel 25,000 25,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
47254 Education and Outreach 15,000 15,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
51020 Equipment Replacement 851,057 851,057 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pre-Treatment Plant Construction Project Expenses (950-53-552)

43060_012 Contact Services Program Mgmt 0 0.00 0.00
43195 Special Legal Counsel 0 0.00 0.00
43332 Permitting 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

43332_002 Permitting - Water Rights Acquisition 0 0.00
45002_000 TID - electrical service 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51001 Property Acquisition - facility site 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
51001 Property Acquisition - infiltration gallery 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

EXHIBIT B

NFiez
Typewritten text
3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
For FY 2023-24    (Updated 12/08/2023)

Account Name
Original 
Budget Amendments

Amended 
Budget 
2023-24

Unaudited 
Actual 
2023-24 Ceres Turlock TID

Other 
Proceeds

Totals for 
2022-23

51001 Property Acquisition - Geer Road easement 0 0.00 0.00
51001 Property Acquisition - delivery facilities 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

51800_001 Wet Well Design 0 0.00
0 0.00

Wet Well Construction 0 0.00
51801_001 Construction Contract (Overaa) 0 0.00
51801_002 Construction Management (Inferrera) 0 0.00
51801_005 Environmental (Horizon) 0 0.00

0 0.00

Treatment Plant Construction - SRF funding eligible (950-53-553)

43060_012 Contract Services - Program Mgmt Services 2,578,587 2,578,587 260,405.19 109,371.39 147,141.76 3,892.04 260,405.19
43195 Special Legal Counsel 38,000 38,000 0.00
43329 Environmental Services 78,000 78,000 7,378.76 3,182.37 3,182.36 1,014.03 7,378.76
43332 Permitting 112,000 112,000 0.00 0.00

 CDFW LSAA for 3 lateral crossings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
  Stanislaus County - Aldrich Road crossing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
  Stanislaus County - Lateral 2, 2.5 & 3 crossing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

43332_001 Permitting - Environmental Mitigation 0 0.00
  Transplant credits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
   Mitigation credits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51802_001 Regional Trtmt Plant - Design/Build Contract 11,610,948 11,610,948 8,091,850.56 2,578,249.02 5,348,259.18 165,342.36 8,091,850.56
51802_002 Regional Trtmt Plant - Contract Management 315,000 315,000 137,409.18 44,451.87 90,250.35 2,706.96 137,409.18

Administrative Expenses (950-53-552)

43055_002 Consultant Audit 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
43060_021 Contract Services General Manager 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
43060_023 Contract Services Watershed Sanitary Survey 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
43105_003 Interdepartmental Admin Support 0

Clerical 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
Financial/Accounting 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

44001_000 Supplies 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
44035 Photocopies 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

44040_000 Postage 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
47010 Bank Charges 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

47040_000 Dues 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
47095_000 Training 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

47091 Reimbursement to Ceres 9,312,427.61 9,312,427.61 9,312,427.61
47092 Reimbursement to Turlock 21,493,425.39 21,493,425.39 21,493,425.39

Debt Expenses
53027_001 SRF Loan-Interest 876,082 876,082 0.00 0.00 0.00
53027_002 SRF Loan-Principal 2,036,163 2,036,163 0.00 0.00 0.00
53027_003 SRF Loan-Reserve and Coverage 8,326,372 8,326,372 0.00 0.00 0.00

Operational Expenses
TBD Operations and Maintenance 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
TBD Agency Administration 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

Internet Access 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
TBD Operations Contigency 0

  Total Expenditures 35,324,925 0 35,324,925 39,382,437.69 12,074,193.27 27,135,289.03 172,955.39 0.00 39,382,437.69

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 0 0 0 (5,660,501.69) (5,621,629.27) (14,526,303.03) 151,213.61 14,336,217.00 (5,660,501.69)

EXHIBIT B

NFiez
Typewritten text
3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
Project to Date (updated as of 12/08/2023) Project to Date

Other Total Since Actuals Thru Actuals For 
City of Ceres City of Turlock TID Proceeds Dec 2015 6/30/2023 2023-24 Total

Agency Contributions
Received from Agencies - through 6-30-2023 73,078,449.12 135,204,789.21 6,021,966.28 214,305,204.61 214,305,204.61 214,305,204.61
Received from Agencies - 2023-24 6,452,564.00 12,608,986.00 324,169.00 19,385,719.00 19,385,719.00 19,385,719.00

Interest Income (115,951.87) (210,493.51) (10,547.72) (336,993.10) (336,993.10) (336,993.10)
Integrated Water Mgmt Plan Grant 1,740,100.77 3,480,723.62 0.00 5,220,824.39 5,220,824.39 5,220,824.39
Prop 50 Grant for Surface Water Project 2,654,983.46 1,327,292.62 3,982,276.08 3,982,276.08 3,982,276.08
Prop 68 Grant Proceeds 27,750,000.00 27,750,000.00 27,750,000.00 27,750,000.00
SRF Proceeds 145,188,547.00 145,188,547.00 130,852,330.00 14,336,217.00 145,188,547.00

Total Revenue 83,810,145.48 152,411,297.94 6,335,587.56 172,938,547.00 415,495,577.98 381,773,641.98 33,721,936.00 415,495,577.98

Expenditures
Pre-Treatment Plant Construction Project Expenses (950-52-553)

Salary Charges From Other Departments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Consultant General 0.00 0.00 (47,125.00) (47,125.00)
Consultant Audit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Contract Services Program Management 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Insurance Liability 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interdepartmental Admin Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Special Legal Counsel 0.00 0.00 (6,269.06) (6,269.06)
Contract Help - Service 0.00 0.00 (13,057.50) (13,057.50)
NPDES Permit Studies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Regulatory Fees 0.00 0.00 (4,570.00) (4,570.00)
Special Services/Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Facility Site Improvements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
RWQCF-OPS Building Repairs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Professional Engineering Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Supplies General 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Chemicals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Computer Software Maintenance 0.00 0.00 (6,200.00) (6,200.00)
Minor Equipment Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Minor Equipment Tools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Minor Equipment Lab 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Office Equipment & Furniture 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
WQC Pump Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Turlock Irrigation District General 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 PG & E General 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Internet Access 0.00 0.00 (2,319.44) (2,319.44)
Raw Water 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Equipment Rental 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Outside Contractor Labor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Gas & Oil 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Certification 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Professional Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Shoe Allowance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Training General/Travel 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Education and Outreach 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Equipment Replacement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Government Relations (74,723.55) (74,723.55) 0.00 (149,447.10) (149,447.10) 0.00 (149,447.10)
Environmental Services (Phase I) (250,664.65) (250,664.65) (32,520.11) (533,849.41) (533,849.41) 0.00 (533,849.41)
Project Management Services (3,617,897.67) (3,764,295.31) (169,093.63) (7,551,286.61) (7,375,145.79) 0.00 (7,375,145.79)
Special Legal Exenses (268,149.65) (268,149.67) (5,302.43) (541,601.75) (496,705.74) 0.00 (496,705.74)

0.00
Wet Well Design (West Yost) (166,904.88) (206,872.74) (93,444.40) (467,222.02) (467,222.02) 0.00 (467,222.02)

EXHIBIT C

NFiez
Typewritten text
3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
Project to Date (updated as of 12/08/2023) Project to Date

Other Total Since Actuals Thru Actuals For 
City of Ceres City of Turlock TID Proceeds Dec 2015 6/30/2023 2023-24 Total

Fees to Stan County-CEQA related to wet well (1,136.63) (1,136.62) 0.00 (2,273.25) (2,273.25) 0.00 (2,273.25)
Permitting (17,768.08) (17,768.09) 0.00 (35,536.17) (35,536.17) 0.00 (35,536.17)
Permitting - Water Rights Acquisition (36,240.88) (36,240.89) 0.00 (72,481.77) (72,481.77) 0.00 (72,481.77)
Water Shed Survey (40,660.67) (40,660.67) 0.00 (81,321.34) (81,321.34) 0.00 (81,321.34)
Property Acquisition - facility site (479,756.19) (959,656.32) 0.00 (1,439,412.51) (1,439,412.51) 0.00 (1,439,412.51)
Property Acquisition - infiltration gallery (246,925.80) (493,925.69) 0.00 (740,851.49) (740,851.49) 0.00 (740,851.49)
Property Acquisition - Geer Road easement (92,200.00) 0.00 0.00 (92,200.00) (92,200.00) 0.00 (92,200.00)
Property Acquisition - delivery facilities (7,393.88) (7,393.88) 0.00 (14,787.76) (14,787.76) 0.00 (14,787.76)

0.00
Wet Well Contruction 0.00

Construction Contract (1,888,242.96) (3,769,413.84) (1,414,414.20) (7,072,071.00) (7,072,071.00) 0.00 (7,072,071.00)
Construction Management (145,962.80) (291,378.94) (109,335.45) (546,677.19) (546,677.19) 0.00 (546,677.19)
Environmental (Phase II) (103,524.75) (155,193.07) (47,798.97) (306,516.79) (306,516.79) 0.00 (306,516.79)
Contractor Financial Evaluation (18,944.30) (18,944.30) (761.40) (38,650.00) (38,650.00) 0.00 (38,650.00)

TID - electrical service (1,580.48) (3,161.45) 0.00 (4,741.93) (4,741.93) 0.00 (4,741.93)
0.00

Treatment Plant Construction - SRF funding eligible (950-53-553) 0.00
Contract Services - Program Mgmt Services (1,287,190.86) (1,845,741.82) (62,937.53) (3,195,870.21) (2,487,464.25) (260,405.19) (2,747,869.44)
Special Legal Counsel (34,489.56) (34,489.60) (1,386.17) (70,365.33) (62,795.93) 0.00 (62,795.93)
Environmental Services (117,904.10) (119,878.87) (39,309.62) (277,092.59) (230,287.85) (7,378.76) (237,666.61)
Permitting (8,605.81) (53,111.44) 0.00 (61,717.25) (61,352.25) 0.00 (61,352.25)
Permitting - Environmental Mitigation (47,339.25) (94,660.75) (35,500.00) (177,500.00) (177,500.00) 0.00 (177,500.00)
Regional Trtmt Plant - Design/Build Contract (78,832,695.35) (156,103,370.20) (4,255,864.77) (239,191,930.32) (184,886,936.49) (8,091,850.56) (192,978,787.05)
Regional Trtmt Plant - Contract Management (502,053.57) (1,019,316.17) (30,573.29) (1,551,943.03) (1,116,280.28) (137,409.18) (1,253,689.46)

0.00
Administrative Support 0.00

Clerical Services (26,719.28) (26,719.28) 0.00 (53,438.56) (53,438.56) 0.00 (53,438.56)
Accounting Services (43,754.74) (43,754.72) 0.00 (87,509.46) (87,509.46) 0.00 (87,509.46)
Interim JPA attorney (22,662.50) (22,662.50) 0.00 (45,325.00) (45,325.00) 0.00 (45,325.00)
Interim General Manager (121,991.80) (121,991.80) 0.00 (243,983.60) (243,983.60) 0.00 (243,983.60)
General Manager (612,893.82) (612,893.81) 0.00 (1,225,787.63) (1,019,272.27) 0.00 (1,019,272.27)
External Audit (14,858.00) (14,858.00) 0.00 (29,716.00) (28,996.00) 0.00 (28,996.00)
Contract Services Watershed Sanitary Survey (892.50) (892.50) 0.00 (1,785.00) (1,785.00) 0.00 (1,785.00)
Supplies and other Miscellaneous Expenses (17,905.08) (17,770.23) 0.00 (35,675.31) (31,164.99) 0.00 (31,164.99)
Reimbursement to Ceres (64,738,822.83) (64,738,822.83) (48,469,221.81) (9,312,427.61) (57,781,649.42)
Reimbursement to Turlock 0.00 (131,538,564.95) 0.00 (131,538,564.95) (95,309,685.08) (21,493,425.39) (116,803,110.47)

Debt Expenses
SRF Loan-Interest (440,689.24) (881,510.69) 0.00 (1,322,199.93) (677,976.27) 0.00 (677,976.27)

Operational Expenses
Operations and Maintenance (419,430.66) (838,987.16) 0.00 (1,258,417.82) (629,208.91) 0.00 (629,208.91)
Agency Administration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Internet Access (425.18) (850.50) 0.00 (1,275.68) (637.84) 0.00 (637.84)

Total Expenditures (154,750,001.95) (303,751,604.67) (6,298,241.97) 0.00 (464,799,848.59) (355,090,713.10) (39,382,437.69) (394,473,150.79)

Contributions over (under) Expenditures -
 project to date (70,939,856.47) (151,340,306.73) 37,345.59 172,938,547.00 (49,304,270.61) 26,682,928.88 (5,660,501.69) 21,022,427.19

EXHIBIT C

NFiez
Typewritten text
3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
For FY 2022-23    (Updated 12/08/2023)

Account Name
Original 
Budget Amendments

Amended 
Budget 
2022-23

Unaudited 
Actual 
2022-23 Ceres Turlock TID

Other 
Proceeds

Totals for 
2022-23

REVENUES
Interest Income 0 (40,306.08) (20,153.04) (20,153.04) 0.00 (40,306.08)

34910 Integrated Water Mgmt Grant 0
34911 Water Smart Grant 0

34900_001 Agency Contrinbution - City of Turlock 39,754,728 39,754,728 45,118,501.71 45,118,501.71 45,118,501.71
34900_002 Agency Contribution - City of Ceres 22,189,606 22,189,606 25,449,152.02 25,449,152.02 25,449,152.02
34900_004 Agency Contrinbution - Turlock Irrigation District 1,473,907 1,473,907 1,736,250.51 1,736,250.51 1,736,250.51

34910 Integrated Water Mgmt Plan Grant 5,220,824.39 1,740,100.77 3,480,723.62 5,220,824.39
34912 Prop 68 Grant for Surface Water Project 0 0.00 0.00
34913 Prop 50 Grant for Surface Water Project 0 3,982,276.08 2,654,983.46 1,327,292.62 3,982,276.08
35440 SRF Funding Proceeds 0 67,321,904.00 67,321,904.00 67,321,904.00

   Total Revenues 63,418,241 0 63,418,241 148,788,602.63 29,824,083.21 49,906,364.91 1,736,250.51 67,321,904.00 148,788,602.63

EXPENSES
Pre-Treatment Plant Construction Project Expenses (950-53-552)

43060_012 Contact Services Program Mgmt 90,927 90,927 176,140.82 88,449.03 87,691.79 0.00 176,140.82
43195 Special Legal Counsel 50,000 50,000 44,896.01 22,448.00 22,448.01 0.00 44,896.01
43332 Permitting 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

43332_002 Permitting - Water Rights Acquisition 0 0.00
45002_000 TID - electrical service 452,109 452,109 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51001 Property Acquisition - facility site 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
51001 Property Acquisition - infiltration gallery 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
51001 Property Acquisition - Geer Road easement 0 0.00 0.00
51001 Property Acquisition - delivery facilities 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

51800_001 Wet Well Design 0 0.00
0 0.00

Wet Well Construction 0 0.00
51801_001 Construction Contract (Overaa) 0 0.00
51801_002 Construction Management (Inferrera) 0 0.00
51801_005 Environmental (Horizon) 2,000 2,000 0.00

0 0.00

Treatment Plant Construction - SRF funding eligible (950-53-553)

43060_012 Contract Services - Program Mgmt Services 1,425,952 1,425,952 708,405.96 277,601.36 415,614.02 15,190.58 708,405.96
43195 Special Legal Counsel 50,000 50,000 7,569.40 3,710.14 3,710.15 149.11 7,569.40
43329 Environmental Services 66,200 66,200 46,804.74 19,922.10 20,548.75 6,333.89 46,804.74
43332 Permitting 112,000 112,000 365.00 365.00 365.00

 CDFW LSAA for 3 lateral crossings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
  Stanislaus County - Aldrich Road crossing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
  Stanislaus County - Lateral 2, 2.5 & 3 crossing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

43332_001 Permitting - Environmental Mitigation 0 0.00
  Transplant credits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
   Mitigation credits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51802_001 Regional Trtmt Plant - Design/Build Contract 55,619,985 55,619,985 54,304,993.83 17,851,451.80 35,208,376.03 1,245,166.00 54,304,993.83
51802_002 Regional Trtmt Plant - Contract Management 501,960 501,960 435,662.75 140,936.90 286,143.29 8,582.56 435,662.75

Administrative Expenses (950-53-552)

43055_002 Consultant Audit 10,000 10,000 720.00 360.00 360.00 720.00
43060_021 Contract Services General Manager 300,000 300,000 206,515.36 103,257.68 103,257.68 206,515.36
43060_023 Contract Services Watershed Sanitary Survey 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
43105_003 Interdepartmental Admin Support 0

Clerical 12,500 12,500 0.00 0.00 0.00
Financial/Accounting 25,000 25,000 300.00 150.00 150.00 300.00

44001_000 Supplies 300 300 0.00 0.00 0.00
44035 Photocopies 500 500 0.00 0.00 0.00

44040_000 Postage 500 500 30.32 15.16 15.16 30.32
47010 Bank Charges 700 700 0.00 0.00 0.00

47040_000 Dues 4,500 4,500 4,180.00 2,090.00 2,090.00 4,180.00
47095_000 Training 1,000 1,000 0.00 0.00 0.00

47091 Reimbursement to Ceres 16,269,601.02 16,269,601.02 16,269,601.02
47092 Reimbursement to Turlock 36,228,879.87 36,228,879.87 36,228,879.87

Debt Expenses
53027_001 SRF Loan-Interest 1,987,719 1,987,719 644,223.66 214,719.75 429,503.91 644,223.66

Operational Expenses
TBD Operations and Maintenance 2,206,419 2,206,419 629,208.91 209,715.33 419,493.58 629,208.91
TBD Agency Administration 247,969 247,969 0.00 0.00 0.00

Internet Access 0 0 637.84 212.59 425.25 637.84
TBD Operations Contigency 250,000 250,000

  Total Expenditures 63,418,240 0 63,418,240 109,709,135.49 35,204,640.86 73,229,072.49 1,275,422.14 0.00 109,709,135.49

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 1 0 1 39,079,467.14 (5,380,557.65) (23,322,707.58) 460,828.37 67,321,904.00 39,079,467.14

EXHIBIT B

NFiez
Typewritten text
3B2



 
 
 
1. A. CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Bublak called the meeting to 12:00 p.m. 

 
B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
C. ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT: Director Bret Silveira, Director Pam Franco, Vice Chair Javier Lopez, Chair Amy 
Bublak  

 ABSENT:   
 

2. RECOGNITION, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS & PRESENTATIONS: None 

 
3. A. SPECIAL BRIEFINGS:  None 

 
B. STAFF UPDATES:  

1. General Manager Goodman provided a presentation on project updates, the work 
allocation with Granberg and Associates, design build contract status, environmental 
clearance/permitting, status, operations agreement, Section 4.2-staffing and pre-
acceptance duties, Cities readiness, funding/financing update, public outreach, and 
project photos.  

 
Chair Bublak opened public participation and the following members of the public 
spoke: 
 
Milt Trierweiler 
 
With no further comment, Chair Bublak closed public participation.  
 
 

2. City of Turlock Water Treatment Plant Manager Salena Estrada provided an update on 
the plant safety, equipment procurement, staffing, and construction progress. 
 
Chair Bublak opened public participation. 

 
There were no comments. 

 
Chair Bublak closed public participation.  

 
3. Finance Director Moreno provided an update on financial activities as of August 11, 2023.  

 
Chair Bublak opened public participation. 
 
There were no comments. 
 
Chair Bublak closed public participation.  

 
C. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

  5A 
 DRAFT Minutes 

Regular Board Meeting 
August 17, 2023 

 



  5A 
SRWA Regular Board Meeting 

D R A F T  Minutes of August 17, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
Chair Bublak opened public participation. 
 
No one from the public spoke 
 
Chair Bublak closed public participation.  

 
4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS: None 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR:  

A. Action: Motion by Director Franco seconded by Director Silveira, to approve the 
minutes of the regular meeting of July 20, 2023. Motion carried 4/0 by the following 
vote: 

 
Director Franco Director Silveira Vice Chair Lopez Chair Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 

 
7. SCHEDULED MATTERS:  

A. General Manager Goodman introduced the item, and requested that the Board 
continue the contract with Granberg and Associates with monthly earnings capped at 
$15,000. Consultant 
 
Chair Bublak opened public participation and the following members of the public 
spoke: 
 
Milt Trierweiler 
 
With no further comment, Chair Bublak closed public participation.  
 
Action: Motion by Director Franco, seconded by Director Silveira, to continue contract 
with Granberg and Associates with monthly earning capped at $15,000 and to revisit 
the contract the next month. Motion carried 4/0 by the following vote: 

 
Director Franco Director Silveira Vice Chair Lopez Chair Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
 

8. MATTERS TOO LATE FOR THE AGENDA:  None 
 
9. BOARD ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION: None 

 
10. BOARD COMMENTS: None 

 
11. NEXT MEETING DATE:  September 21, 2023, in Ceres 
 
12. CLOSED SESSION: None 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT:  Chair Bublak adjourned the meeting at 12:45 p.m. 



  5A 
SRWA Regular Board Meeting 

D R A F T  Minutes of August 17, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 
 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
DRAFT 

 _______________________________ 
 Angelica Gonsalves, Board Secretary 



5B 
 

 
 
 
 

STANISLAUS REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
All Regular Meetings will convene at 12:00 p.m. at either Turlock City Hall, 156 South 
Broadway, Turlock, California, or Ceres Community Center, 2701 4th Street, Ceres, California, 
as referenced in the agenda.  The Brown Act establishes the deadlines for posting meeting 
agendas.  Regular Meeting agendas must be posted at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
Special Meeting agendas must be posted at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  

 

 

 

BOARD MEETING 
DATE 

AGENDA POSTING 
DEADLINE 

 
(72 hours prior) 

PRELIMINARY REVIEW: 

CONTRACTS & STAFF 
REPORTS DUE TO 

GENERAL COUNSEL 

(2 weeks prior) 

REVIEWED & 
APPROVED REPORTS 

DUE TO BOARD 
SECRETARY 

(1 week prior) 

January 18, 2024 January 12, 2024 January 4, 2024 January 11, 2024 

February 15, 2024 February 12, 2024 February 1, 2024 February 8, 2024 

March 21, 2024 March 18, 2024 March 7, 2024 March 14, 2024 

April 18, 2024 April 15, 2024 April 4, 2024 April 11, 2024 

May 16, 2024 May 13, 2024 May 2, 2024 May 9, 2024 

June 20, 2024 June 17, 2024 June 6, 2024 June 13, 2024 

July 18, 2024 July 15, 2024 July 5, 2024 July 11, 2024 

August 15, 2024 August 12, 2024 August 1, 2024 August 8, 2024 

September 19, 2024 September 16, 2024 September 5, 2024 September 12, 2024 

October 17, 2024 October 14, 2024 October 3, 2024 October 10, 2024 

November 21, 2024 November 18, 2024 November 7, 2024 November 7, 2024 

December 19, 2024 December 16, 2024 December 5, 2024 December 12, 2024 

 



 
 
 
 

From:  Christopher Fisher, General Manager, SRWA  
 

Prepared by: Janice Virgo, Staff Services Assistant 
 
 

1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Motion: Approving an Agreement with First Shield Security and Patrol, Inc., for 
unarmed, private security services at Stanislaus Regional Water 
Authority Water Treatment Plant for a three (3) year term in an amount 
not to exceed $1,061,000.   

 

2. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE:   
 

Background 
 
In June 2023 the City initiated the following action: 

 Preparing for the issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a multi-year 
agreement for unarmed, private security services for the Stanislaus Regional 
Water Authority (SRWA). The results of that process are further described in 
this staff report.  Security services at the Transit Center and City Hall will be 
considered separately by the City of Turlock Council as part of a separate 
agreement. 

 
Competitive Solicitation 
 
On August 24, 2023, City of Turlock Purchasing staff released a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for unarmed, private security services. This information was shared directly 
with the incumbent provider via email, advertised in accordance with standard 
purchasing procedures, as well as posted to the City’s website.  On September 8, 
2023, Addendum No. 1 was issued to provide a response to questions submitted from 
prospective proposers.  All proposals were due for submission by September 14, 2023 
at 3:00 p.m. 
 
The Purchasing Officer received a total of twelve (12) proposals from prospective 
firms. Each proposal was reviewed by an Evaluation Committee comprised of three (3) 
individuals: one (1) from the Transit Division, one (1) from the Human Relations 
Department, and one (1) from SRWA Operations Division.  Each proposal was reviewed 
and scored against the established scoring criteria specified in the RFP: 
 
 
 
 

Item  7A 
Board Synopsis 

December 13, 2023 



 

Scoring Criteria Maximum 
Points 

Qualifications of Key Personnel 25 
Approach to Providing the Requested Scope of Services 25 
Price Proposal 20 
Innovation/Creative Approach 20 
References 10 
  

Total Points Available 100 
 

After a careful review of the proposals, the Evaluation Committee members combined 
their individual scores and averaged them, resulting in the following ranked order: 
 

Proposer Score 

First Shield Security and Patrol, Inc. 92 
American Global Security, Inc. 87 
CrimeTek Security, Inc.  82 
Citiguard, Inc.  70 
American Guard Services, Inc. 59 
Allied Universal Security Services 53 
American Custom Private Security, Inc. 53 
A1 Protective Services, LLC 53 
Inter-Con Security 51 
Aone Security, Inc.  48 
Third Eye Security Services, Inc. 38 
Eternity Private Security 20 

 
The Evaluation Committee found the proposal (Professional Services Agreement, 
Exhibit A) submitted by First Shield Security and Patrol, Inc., of Tracy, California, to 
most clearly reflect an accurate understanding of the scope of work, as well as reflect 
the greatest capacity to deliver those services in a competitively priced manner. 
Accordingly, this proposer received the highest overall score. 
 
Armed vs. Unarmed Security 
 
The City did not solicit for armed security guards for three (3) primary reasons: 

 There’s a substantial increase in the hourly rate for armed guards, given the 
additional training required for such a position; 

 The nature of the work at the Transit Center or at City Hall does not seem to 
require it; and 

 Armed individuals employed to support transit operations are required to 
comply with extensive drug and alcohol program requirements, which would be 
difficult from an operational standpoint with a contracted operator. 

 
 
 

  7A 

Agenda Synopsis 
December 13, 2023 

Page 2 of 5 
 



 

Recommendation 
 
SRWA staff is recommending the SRWA Board award an Agreement to First Shield 
Security and Patrol, Inc. (Attachment B), in an amount not to exceed between 
$343,155 and $364,053 annually and not to exceed $1,061,000 for a three (3) year 
base term with no extension options. Services would commence on November 1, 2023 
and terminate on October 31, 2026. 
 
Security services at the Transit Center and City Hall, as outlined in the RFP, will be 
considered separately by the City of Turlock Council as part of a separate agreement. 

 

 

3. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. First Shield Security and Patrol, Inc., was identified by a three (3) member 
evaluation committee to have provided the best proposal in response to the 
RFP. 

 
B. A three (3) year base term minimizes the administrative time spent in the 

extension process, ensures continuity of service, and retains the right of the 
City to terminate the Agreement at its convenience at any time, if necessary. 

 
 

 
4. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:   

 

First Shield Security and Patrol, Inc., has proposed to provide services at Stanislaus 
Regional Water Authority Water Treatment Plant at the rate of $28.00 per hour for 
regular services, $42.00 per hour for services provided on an identified holiday (seven 
per year). 
 
Staff prepared cost estimates for the location based on the estimated hours for when 
services would be needed, the hourly rates identified in the proposal, as well as a 
three percent (3%) increase in the second and third years, respectively, to account for 
a potential request for a compensation increase as provided in the Agreement 
(Section 6.1). These potential price increases are not guaranteed and are included 
solely to ensure that the Agreement has a reasonable financial capacity to 
accommodate such future increases if requested by the vendor and if approved by the 
SRWA board in accordance with Section 6.1 of the Agreement. If these cost estimates 
were not included as part of the original contract, then any future increase made 
pursuant to Section 6.1 would require an amendment to the Agreement.  
 
The Water Treatment Plant has sufficient funding budgeted in the FY 2023-24 
municipal budget in Fund “Operations” Account No. 950-53-550.43351 “SRWA Site 
Security” to pay for the specified services for the remainder of the current fiscal year 
(eight months). No budget amendment is required. 
 
 

  7A 

Agenda Synopsis 
December 13, 2023 

Page 3 of 5 
 



 

A breakdown of the cost estimate for this location is specified below: 
 

Type of Time
Hourly 

Rate

Number of 

Hours
Subtotal

Regular $28.00 12,888 $360,864.00 

Holiday (supplemental) $14.00 252 $3,528.00 

$364,392.00 

$121,464.00 

$125,107.92 

$128,861.16 

$375,433.08 

$376,000.00 Requested Amount (rounded to nearest thousand)

Total (before increases)

Year 1 (no increase)

Year 2 (with estimated 3% increase)

Year 3 (with compounded estimated 3% increase)

Total (including increases)

 
 

 
Staff is recommending a not to exceed amount of between $121,464 and $128,862 
annually and a not to exceed amount of $376,000 over the term of the Agreement, 
which is the combination of the identified amounts for SRWA, over the three (3) year 
term of the Agreement, which was a separate Agreement approved by City of Turlock 
Council.  

 
5. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   

 
Recommend approval 

 
6. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   

 

This action is not subject to the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) in accordance with Section 15378 (Project) of the CEQA guidelines.  This action 
consists of “organizational or administrative activities of governments that will not 
result in direct or indirect physical changes in the environment” and therefore is not 
considered a project. 

 

7. ALTERNATIVES:   
 

A. Reject an award of an agreement to the selected firm and provide an award to 
an alternate firm instead. Staff does not recommend this approach as the 
identified firm was selected by an Evaluation Committee in accordance with 
the evaluation criteria specified in the RFP. In addition, awarding an 
agreement outside of the specified scoring criteria could result in a protest 
filed by originally identified firm. 
 

  7A 

Agenda Synopsis 
December 13, 2023 

Page 4 of 5 
 



 

B. Reject an award of an agreement to any firm and re-solicit proposals through 
another competitive process. Staff does not recommend this approach because 
the selected firm was identified by the Evaluation Committee as competent 
and capable after a thorough evaluation process. In addition, it is unlikely that 
pricing will go down if seeking new proposals. 

 
 

8. ATTACHMENTS: 

 
A. Professional Services Agreement 

Exhibit A: Response to Request for Proposal RFP #23-018 
 

 
 

 

 

  7A 

Agenda Synopsis 
December 13, 2023 

Page 5 of 5 
 



 

{00305879.1} 
Rev. 07/07/21 1 

SRWA– Services Agreement rev 2023-09-29.docx 

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority 

Services Agreement 

 

 This Agreement is entered into as of the date last signed and dated below by and 

between Stanislaus Regional Water Authority, a local government agency (“SRWA”), and  

First Shield Security and Patrol, Inc., a California stock corporation (“Professional”), who 

agree as follows: 

1 Scope of Work 

 Contractor shall perform the work and render the services described in the attached 

Exhibit A (the “Work”). Contractor shall provide all labor, services, equipment, tools, material 

and supplies required or necessary to properly, competently and completely perform the 

Work. Contractor shall determine the method, details and means of doing the Work. 

2 Payment 

2.1 SRWA shall pay to Contractor a fee based on: 

___ Contractor’s time and expenses necessarily and actually expended or 

incurred on the Work in accordance with Contractor’s fee schedule on the 

attached Exhibit A. 

___ The fee arrangement described on the attached Exhibit A. 

 The total fee for the Work shall not exceed between $121,464 and $128,862  and total 
compensation shall not exceed Three hundred Seventy-Six Thousand and 00/100 Dollars 
($376,000.00) (“Maximum Payment”). There shall be no compensation for extra or additional 

work or services by Contractor unless approved in advance in writing by SRWA. 

Contractor’s fee includes all of Contractor’s costs and expenses related to the Work. 

2.2 At the end of each month, Contractor shall submit to SRWA an invoice for the 

Work performed during the preceding month. The invoice shall include a brief description of 

the Work performed, the dates of Work, number of hours worked and by whom (if payment 

is based on time), payment due, and an itemization of any reimbursable expenditures. If the 

Work is satisfactorily completed and the invoice is accurately computed, SRWA shall pay the 

invoice within 30 days of its receipt.  

3 Term 

3.1 This Agreement shall take effect on the above date and continue in effect for: 

(a)three (3) years from the Effective Date, (b) completion of the Work, or (c) termination as 

provided below, whichever occurs first. Time is of the essence in this Agreement. If Exhibit 

A includes a Work schedule or deadline, then Contractor must complete the Work in 

accordance with the specified schedule or deadline, which may be extended by SRWA for good 

cause shown by Contractor. If Exhibit A does not include a Work schedule or deadline, then 

Contractor must perform the Work diligently and as expeditiously as possible, consistent 

with the professional skill and care appropriate for the orderly progress of the Work.  



 

{00305879.1} 
Rev. 07/07/21 2 

3.2 This Agreement may be terminated at any time by SRWA upon 10 days 

advance written notice to Contractor. In the event of such termination, Contractor shall be 

fairly compensated for all work performed to the date of termination as calculated by SRWA 

based on the above fee and payment provisions. Compensation under this section shall not 

include any termination-related expenses, cancellation or demobilization charges, or lost 

profit associated with the expected completion of the Work or other such similar payments 

relating to Contractor’s claimed benefit of the bargain. 

4 Professional Ability of Contractor 

4.1 Contractor represents that it is specially trained and experienced, and 

possesses the skill, ability, knowledge and certification, to competently perform the Work 

provided by this Agreement. SRWA has relied upon Contractor’s training, experience, skill, 

ability, knowledge and certification as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 

All Work performed by Contractor shall be in accordance with applicable legal requirements 

and meet the standard of care and quality ordinarily to be expected of competent 

professionals in Contractor’s field. 

4.2 {Intentionally Omitted}  

5 Conflict of Interest 

 Contractor (including principals, associates and professional employees) represents 

and acknowledges that (a) it does not now have and shall not acquire any direct or indirect 

investment, interest in real property or source of income that would be affected in any 

manner or degree by the performance of Contractor’s services under this agreement, and 

(b) no person having any such interest shall perform any portion of the Work. The parties 

agree that Contractor is not a designated employee within the meaning of the Political 

Reform Act and SRWA’s conflict of interest code because Contractor will perform the Work 

independent of the control and direction of the SRWA or of any SRWA official, other than 

normal contract monitoring, and Contractor possesses no authority with respect to any 

SRWA decision beyond the rendition of information, advice, recommendation or counsel. 

6 Contractor Records 

6.1 Contractor shall keep and maintain all ledgers, books of account, invoices, 

vouchers, canceled checks, and other records and documents evidencing or relating to the 

Work and invoice preparation and support for a minimum period of three years (or for any 

longer period required by law) from the date of final payment to Contractor under this 

Agreement. SRWA may inspect and audit such books and records, including source 

documents, to verify all charges, payments and reimbursable costs under this Agreement.  

6.2 In accordance with California Government Code section 8546.7, the parties 

acknowledge that this Agreement, and performance and payments under it, are subject to 

examination and audit by the California State Auditor for three years following final 

payment under the Agreement. 



 

{00305879.1} 
Rev. 07/07/21 3 

7 Ownership of Documents 

 All works of authorship and every report, study, spreadsheet, worksheet, plan, design, 

blueprint, specification, drawing, map, photograph, computer model, computer disk, 

magnetic tape, CAD data file, computer software and any other document or thing prepared, 

developed or created by Contractor under this Agreement and provided to SRWA (“Work 

Product”) shall be the property of SRWA, and SRWA shall have the rights to use, modify, 

reuse, reproduce, publish, display, broadcast and distribute the Work Product and to prepare 

derivative and additional documents or works based on the Work Product without further 

compensation to Contractor or any other party. Contractor may retain a copy of any Work 

Product and use, reproduce, publish, display, broadcast, and distribute any Work Product 

and prepare derivative and additional documents or works based on any Work Product; 

provided, however, that Contractor shall not provide any Work Product to any third party 

without SRWA’s prior written approval, unless compelled to do so by legal process. If any 

Work Product is copyrightable, Contractor may copyright the same, except that, as to any 

Work Product that is copyrighted by Contractor, SRWA reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive 

and irrevocable license to use, reuse, reproduce, publish, display, broadcast, and distribute 

the Work Product and to prepare derivative and additional documents or works based on the 

Work Product. If SRWA reuses or modifies any Work Product for a use or purpose other than 

that intended by the scope of work under this Agreement, then SRWA shall hold Contractor 

harmless against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses arising from such reuse or 

modification. For any Work Product provided to SRWA in paper format, upon request by 

SRWA at any time (including, but not limited to, at expiration or termination of this 

Agreement), Contractor agrees to provide the Work Product to SRWA in a readable, 

transferable, and usable electronic format generally acknowledged as being an industry-

standard format for information exchange between computers (e.g., Word file, Excel 

spreadsheet file, AutoCAD file). 

8 Confidentiality of Information {Intentionally Omitted} 

9 Compliance with Laws 

9.1 General. Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with all applicable 

federal, state and local laws and regulations. Contractor shall possess, maintain and comply 

with all federal, state and local permits, licenses and certificates that may be required for it 

to perform the Work. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local air pollution 

control laws and regulations applicable to the Contractor and its Work (as required by 

California Code of Regulations title 13, section 2022.1). Contractor shall be responsible for 

the safety of its workers and Contractor shall comply with applicable federal and state worker 

safety-related laws and regulations. 

9.2 California Labor Code Compliance for Pre- and Post-Construction Related 

Work and Maintenance. 

9.2.1 This section 9.2 applies if the Work includes either of the following: 

9.2.1.1 Labor performed during the design, site assessment, feasibility 

study and pre-construction phases of construction, including, but not limited to, inspection 

and land surveying work, and labor performed during the post-construction phases of 

construction, including, but not limited to, cleanup work at the jobsite. (See California Labor 



 

{00305879.1} 
Rev. 07/07/21 4 

Code section 1720(a).) If the Work includes some labor as described in the preceding sentence 

and other labor that is not, then this section 9.2 applies only to workers performing the pre-

construction and post-construction work. 

9.2.1.2 “Maintenance” work, which means (i) routine, recurring and 

usual work for the preservation, protection and keeping of any SRWA facility, plant, building, 

structure, utility system or other property (“SRWA Facility”) in a safe and continually usable 

condition, (ii) carpentry, electrical, plumbing, glazing, touchup painting, and other craft work 

designed to preserve any SRWA Facility in a safe, efficient and continuously usable condition, 

including repairs, cleaning and other operations on SRWA machinery and equipment, and 

(iii) landscape maintenance. “Maintenance” excludes (i) janitorial or custodial services of a 

routine, recurring or usual nature, and (ii) security, guard or other protection-related 

services. (See California Labor Code section 1771 and 8 California Code of Regulations 

section 16000.) If the Work includes some “maintenance” work and other work that is not 

“maintenance,” then this section 9.2 applies only to workers performing the “maintenance” 

work. 

9.2.2 Contractor shall comply with the California Labor Code provisions 

concerning payment of prevailing wage rates, penalties, employment of apprentices, hours of 

work and overtime, keeping and retention of payroll records, and other requirements 

applicable to public works as may be required by the Labor Code and applicable state 

regulations. (See California Labor Code division 2, part 7, chapter 1 (sections 1720-1861), 

which is incorporated in this Agreement by this reference.) The state-approved prevailing 

rates of per diem wages are available at 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm. Contractor also shall comply with 

Labor Code sections 1775 and 1813, including provisions that require Contractor to (a) forfeit 

as a penalty to SRWA up to $200 for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker 

(whether employed by Contractor or any subcontractor) paid less than the applicable 

prevailing wage rates for any labor done under this Agreement in violation of the Labor Code, 

(b) pay to each worker the difference between the prevailing wage rate and the amount paid 

to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which the worker was paid less 

than the prevailing wage, and (c) forfeit as a penalty to SRWA the sum of $25 for each worker 

(whether employed by Contractor or any subcontractor) for each calendar day during which 

the worker is required or permitted to work more than 8 hours in any one day and 40 hours 

in any one calendar week in violation of Labor Code sections 1810 through 1815.  

9.2.3 If the Work includes labor during pre- or post-construction phases as 

defined in section 9.2.1.1 above and the amount of the fee payable to Contractor under section 

2 of this Agreement exceeds $25,000, Contractor must be registered and qualified to perform 

public work with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant section 1725.5 of the 

Labor Code.   

Contractor’s Public Works Contractor Registration Number:      

9.2.4 If the Work includes maintenance as defined in section 9.2.1.2 above 

and the amount of the fee payable to Contractor under section 2 of this Agreement exceeds 

$15,000, Contractor must be registered and qualified to perform public work with the 

Department of Industrial Relations pursuant section 1725.5 of the Labor Code.   

Contractor’s Public Works Contractor Registration Number:      



 

{00305879.1} 
Rev. 07/07/21 5 

      d. {Intentionally Omitted} 

10 Indemnification.  

10.1 Contractor shall indemnify, defend, protect, and hold harmless SRWA, and its 

officers, employees and agents (“Indemnitees”) from and against any claims, liability, losses, 

damages and expenses (including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees, and litigation 

costs) (collectively a “Claim”) that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 

recklessness, or willful misconduct of Contractor or its employees, agents or subcontractors. 

The duty to indemnify, including the duty and the cost to defend, is limited as provided in 

this section. However, this indemnity provision will not apply to any Claim arising from the 

sole negligence or willful misconduct of SRWA or its employees or agents. Contractor’s 

obligations under this indemnification provision shall survive the termination of, or 

completion of Work under, this Agreement.  

10.2 This section 10.2 applies if the Contractor is a “design professional” as that 

term is defined in Civil Code section 2782.8.  If a court or arbitrator determines that the 

incident or occurrence that gave rise to the Claim was partially caused by the fault of an 

Indemnitee, then in no event shall Contractor’s total costs incurred pursuant to its duty to 

defend Indemnitees exceed Contractor’s proportionate percentage of fault as determined by 

a final judgment of a court or final decision of arbitrator. 

11 Insurance 

 Types & Limits. Contractor at its sole cost and expense shall procure and maintain 

for the duration of this Agreement the following types and limits of insurance: [The general 

liability and automobile coverage limits may be adjusted depending on the Work’s 

overall risks, cost and complexity.]  

 

Type Limits Scope 

Commercial general liability $2,000,000 per occurrence & 

$4,000,000 aggregate 

at least as broad as 

Insurance Services Office 

(ISO) Commercial General 

Liability Coverage 

(Occurrence Form CG 00 01) 

including products and 

completed operations, 

property damage, bodily 

injury, personal and 

advertising injury  

Automobile liability $1,000,000 per accident at least as broad as ISO 

Business Auto Coverage 

(Form CA 00 01) 

Workers’ compensation Statutory limits  

 

Employers’ liability $1,000,000 per accident  

 

Professional liability* $1,000,000 per claim  

 



 

{00305879.1} 
Rev. 07/07/21 6 

*Required only if Contractor is a licensed engineer, land surveyor, geologist, architect, doctor, 

attorney or accountant. 

 

11.1 Other Requirements. The general and automobile liability policy(ies) shall be 

endorsed to name SRWA, its officers, employees, board members, volunteers and agents as 

additional insureds regarding liability arising out of the Work. Contractor’s general and 

automobile coverage shall be primary and apply separately to each insurer against whom 

claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 

SRWA's insurance or self-insurance, if any, shall be excess and shall not contribute with 

Contractor's insurance. Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall 

not be canceled, except after 30 days (10 days for non-payment of premium) prior written 

notice to SRWA. Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to do business in 

California with a current A.M. Best’s rating of A:VII or better unless otherwise acceptable to 

SRWA. Workers’ compensation insurance issued by the State Compensation Insurance Fund 

is acceptable. Except for professional liability insurance, Contractor agrees to waive 

subrogation that any insurer may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any 

loss relating to the Work. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary 

to implement this subrogation waiver. The workers’ compensation policy must be endorsed 

to contain a subrogation waiver in favor of SRWA for the Work performed by Contractor. 

11.2 Proof of Insurance. Upon request, Contractor shall provide to SRWA the 

following proof of insurance: (a) certificate(s) of insurance evidencing this insurance; and (b) 

endorsement(s) on ISO Form CG 2010 (or insurer’s equivalent), signed by a person authorized 

to bind coverage on behalf of the insurer(s), and certifying the additional insured coverage. 

12 General Provisions 

12.1 Entire Agreement; Amendment. The parties intend this writing to be the 

sole, final, complete, exclusive and integrated expression and statement of the terms of their 

contract concerning the Work. This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written 

negotiations, representations, contracts or other documents that may be related to the Work, 

except those other documents (if any) that are expressly referenced in this Agreement. This 

Agreement may be amended only by a subsequent written contract approved and signed by 

both parties. 

12.2 Independent Contractor. Contractor’s relationship to SRWA is that of an 

independent contractor. All persons hired by Contractor and performing the Work shall be 

Contractor’s employees or agents. Contractor and its officers, employees and agents are not 

SRWA employees, and they are not entitled to SRWA employment salary, wages or benefits. 

Contractor shall pay, and SRWA shall not be responsible in any way for, the salary, wages, 

workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, tax withholding, and 

benefits to and on behalf of Contractor’s employees. Contractor shall, to the fullest extent 

permitted by law, indemnify SRWA, and its officers, employees, board members, volunteers 

and agents from and against any and all liability, penalties, expenses and costs resulting 

from any adverse determination by the federal Internal Revenue Service, California 

Franchise Tax Board, other federal or state agency, or court concerning Contractor’s 

independent contractor status or employment-related liability. 

12.3 Subcontractors. No subcontract shall be awarded nor any subcontractor 

engaged by Contractor without SRWA’s prior written approval. Contractor shall be 



 

{00305879.1} 
Rev. 07/07/21 7 

responsible for requiring and confirming that each approved subcontractor meets the 

minimum insurance requirements specified in section 11 of this Agreement. Any approved 

subcontractor shall obtain the required insurance coverages and provide proof of same to 

SRWA in the manner provided in section 11 of this Agreement. 

12.4 Assignment. This Agreement and all rights and obligations under it are 

personal to the parties. The Agreement may not be transferred, assigned, delegated or 

subcontracted in whole or in part, whether by assignment, subcontract, merger, operation of 

law or otherwise, by either party without the prior written consent of the other party. Any 

transfer, assignment, delegation, or subcontract in violation of this provision is null and void 

and grounds for the other party to terminate the Agreement.  

12.5 No Waiver of Rights. Any waiver at any time by either party of its rights as 

to a breach or default of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver as to any other 

breach or default. No payment by SRWA to Contractor shall be considered or construed to be 

an approval or acceptance of any Work or a waiver of any breach or default. 

12.6 Severability. If any part of this Agreement is held to be void, invalid, illegal 

or unenforceable, then the remaining parts will continue in full force and effect and be fully 

binding, provided that each party still receives the benefits of this Agreement. 

12.7 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement will be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. The county and federal 

district court where SRWA’s office is located shall be venue for any state and federal court 

litigation concerning the enforcement or construction of this Agreement. 

12.8 Notice. Any notice, demand, invoice or other communication required or 

permitted to be given under this Agreement must be in writing and delivered either (a) in 

person, (b) by prepaid, first class U.S. mail, (c) by a nationally-recognized commercial 

overnight courier service that guarantees next day delivery and provides a receipt, or (d) by 

email with confirmed receipt. Such notices, etc. shall be addressed as follows: 

 

SRWA:       

 

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority  

Attn:      

[insert complete name and address for contract manager]  

E-mail:     

 

Contractor: 

     

Attn:      

     

E-mail:     

 

Notice given as above will be deemed given (a) when delivered in person, (b) three days after 

deposited in prepaid, first class U.S. mail, (c) on the date of delivery as shown on the overnight 

courier service receipt, or (d) upon the sender’s receipt of an email from the other party 

confirming the delivery of the notice, etc. Any party may change its contact information by 

notifying the other party of the change in the manner provided above. 



 

{00305879.1} 
Rev. 07/07/21 8 

 

12.9 Signatures and Authority.  Each party warrants that the person signing 

this Agreement is authorized to act on behalf of the party for whom that person signs. This 

Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, but all of which together shall constitute the same instrument. Counterparts may 

be delivered by facsimile, electronic mail (including PDF or any electronic signature 

complying with California’s Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (Cal. Civ. Code, §1633.1, et 

seq.) or any other applicable law) or other transmission method. The parties agree that any 

electronic signatures appearing on the Agreement are the same as handwritten signatures 

for the purposes of validity, enforceability, and admissibility.  

 

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority: 

 

Dated: _____________________________    

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

 [Name] 

 [Title] 

 

 

[Name of Contractor]: 

 

Dated: _____________________________ 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

[Name/Title] 



































































































 
 
 
 

From: Christopher Fisher, General Manager 
 

Prepared by: Christopher Fisher, General Manager 
 
 

1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Motion: Appointing Nichole Fiez as the SRWA Board Secretary effective 
December 14, 2023 

 

2. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE:   
 

Since July 2021, Angelica Gonsalves has served as the SRWA Board Secretary. She has 
filled this position in addition to her duties at the City of Ceres. Due to a recent 
promotion as Financial Customer Service Supervisor at the City of Turlock, Ms. 
Gonsalves can no longer continue to serve as Board Secretary.  
 
It is proposed that Nichole Fiez be appointed as SRWA Secretary, effective December 
14, 2023. Ms. Fiez work for the City of Turlock in the capacity of Executive 
Administrative Assistant to the City Manager Office/Deputy City Clerk. 
 

3. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:   
 

Board Secretary staff support is budgeted annually in Administrative Expenses Account 
No. 950-53-552.43105_003. 

 
4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   

 
Recommends approval. 

 
5. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:  N/A 

 
Recommends approval. 

 

6. ALTERNATIVES:   
 

The Board may choose to direct the General Manager to review other options for 
filling the Board Secretary position. 

 

Item 7B 
Board Synopsis 

December 13, 2023 


	12132023 SRWA Special Board Meeting Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	3B-2 Financial Director Report.pdf (p.14-19)
	3B-2 Financial Information to Board 12_13_2023.pdf (p.1)
	3B-2 Financial Exhibits for 12_13_2023.pdf (p.2-6)

	5A 8172023 SRWA Minutes Draft.pdf (p.20-22)
	5B 2024 SRWA Meeting Schedule.pdf (p.23)
	7B - First Shield Security.pdf (p.35-95)
	7b First Shield Security and Patrol Inc.pdf (p.1-5)
	SRWA - Unarmed Security Services  agreement for professional services se comments.pdf (p.6-13)
	Unarmed Security Services - Attachment B Agreement - Exhibit A.pdf (p.14-61)

	7C - SRWA Board Secretary.pdf (p.96)

